
AGENDA 

TOWN OF INDIALANTIC BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 

AUGUST 12, 2020 AT 4:30 P.M. 
 

NOTICE: This meeting will not be held at Town Hall. This meeting will be held utilizing 

Communications Media Technology in accordance with Governor DeSantis’ Executive Order No. 20-

69 and Town Emergency Order #2020-09. Those wishing to attend the meeting are encouraged to 

join the meeting online using the Zoom Webinar platform or by telephone. 

Please click the link below to join the webinar: 
https://zoom.us/j/96984759524?pwd=c1BaUjVnTkM5Y0taRk9odjBQTGNVQT09 
Passcode: 542497 
Or iPhone one-tap :  
    US: +13126266799,,96984759524#,,,,,,0#,,542497#  or 
+16465588656,,96984759524#,,,,,,0#,,542497#  
Or Telephone: 
    Dial(for higher quality, dial a number based on your current location): 
        US: +1 312 626 6799  or +1 646 558 8656  or +1 301 715 8592  or +1 346 248 7799  or +1 669 900 
9128  or +1 253 215 8782  
Webinar ID: 969 8475 9524 
Passcode: 542497 
    International numbers available: https://zoom.us/u/abvgJQQmSk 
 
Instructions on how to join a Zoom meeting: https://support.zoom.us/hc/en-us/articles/201362193-

Joining-a-Meeting\ 

Public Comments, during the meeting, (3 minutes per speaker): 

Click on “Raise Hand” button to speak. At the appropriate time, a member of the public can indicate 

that he/she would like to offer a public comment by (1) Pressing the “Raise Hand” button in Zoom; or 

(2) dialing *9 if calling in on a telephone line.  

Technical Issues: If staff or board members experience technical issues the meeting will be 

temporarily halted until the issues are resolved; if the issue cannot be resolved, the meeting will be 

adjourned. 

 

A. Call to Order: 

David A Justice     Vice Chairman 
Chris Campbell     Member 
Safvat Kalaghchy  Member 
Jeffrey Schulte      Member 
Sam Martorella     Member 
Stephen Baughn   1st Alternate 
Michael Hill            2nd Alternate 
 

B. Appointing a Chair and Vice Chair: 
 

https://zoom.us/j/96984759524?pwd=c1BaUjVnTkM5Y0taRk9odjBQTGNVQT09
https://zoom.us/u/abvgJQQmSk
https://support.zoom.us/hc/en-us/articles/201362193-Joining-a-Meeting/
https://support.zoom.us/hc/en-us/articles/201362193-Joining-a-Meeting/


C. Approval of Prior Meeting Minutes:  

Minutes – November 13, 2019 
 

D. Variance Request: 

Site address: 405 N Miramar Ave 
Applicant: Clayton Bennett, PE 
 

1) Code Section 6-30(C): a variance of 276.2 ft is requested to construct seaward of the 

coastal construction control line.; and 

2) Code Section 17-127(4) (B): a variance of 25 ft to the required 100 ft lot width 

requirement.  

E. Adjournment: 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Notice:  Pursuant to section 286.0105, Florida Statutes, the town hereby advises the public that if a 

person decides to appeal any decision made by this board with respect to any matter considered at 

its meeting or hearing, he will need a record of the proceedings, and may need to ensure that a 

verbatim record of the proceedings is made which includes the testimony and evidence upon which 

the appeal is to be based.  This notice does not constitute consent by the town for the introduction or 

admission into evidence of otherwise inadmissible or irrelevant evidence, nor does it authorize 

challenges or appeals not otherwise allowed by law. 

Americans with Disabilities Act: Persons planning to attend the meeting who need special assistance 

must notify the office of the town clerk at 321-723-2242 no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting. 



 

  1 

MINUTES 
Town of Indialantic Board of Adjustment 

Town Hall Council Chamber 
216 Fifth Avenue, Indialantic, FL 32903 

November 13, 2019 at 5:30 P.M. 
 
 
A Meeting of the Town of Indialantic Board of Adjustment was called to order by 
Chairman Doug Wright on Wednesday, November 13, 2019, at 5:35 p.m. with the 
following members present: 
 
 Doug Wright  Chairman 
 Chris Campbell Member 
 Safvat Kalaghchy Member 
 Sam Martorella 2nd Alternate 
 
Absent: Carrie Englehart, 1st Alternate; Jeffrey Schulte, Member; David Justice, Vice 
Chairman 
 
Also present: Town Manager Michael Casey, Town Attorney Paul Gougelman, Town 
Clerk Rebekah Raddon, and Building Official Cliff Stokes. 
 
Chairman Wright led the assembly in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
 

1. APPROVAL OF PRIOR MEETING MINUTES:  
 
 Minutes – October 9, 2019 
 

MOTION by Member Campbell, seconded by Member Kalaghchy, and vote 
unanimous to approve the meeting minutes. Motion passed 4-0.  

 
Chairman Wright suggested a change to the agenda and asked the Board hear 
the variance request first as the applicant was waiting; there were no objections 
from the Board. 

 
2. VARIANCE REQUEST: 

 
Chairman Wright read the following: 

 
A variance request filed by David McGough for property located at 130 Seventh 
Avenue, Indialantic, FL 32903. A variance to Section 17-105 (4) Swimming 
Pools, allowing a 5’ setback from waterline to rear property line; a variance to 
Section 17-105 (5) allowing a 3’ setback from pool deck to rear property line.  

 
David McGough, 130 Seventh Avenue, spoke regarding his request; and lengthy 
discussion followed.  



 

  2 

Mr. Gougelman asked what is located north of the property on lots 6 and 7; Mr. 
Stokes explained that it is zoned R-P and was being used as a parking area for 
Brevard Pools and he didn’t anticipate any changes in the near future.  

 
After further discussion regarding altering the size and location of the pool, 
Chairman Wright suggested granting a 2.5’ variance as a compromise.  

 
 

MOTION by Member Kalaghchy, seconded by Member Campbell to approve 
a 2.5’  variance to Section 17-105 (4) Swimming Pools to allow a 7.5’ pool 
setback, and dismiss the pool deck variance request.  

 
Motion carried 3-1, nay vote by Member Campbell. 

 
 
 

3. Approval of Final Order: 
 

In Re: Bayswater Development Corporation application for a Coastal 
Construction Control Line Variance for property located at 718 Wave Crest Ave. 

   
Mr. Gougelman explained that the final order addresses comments made during 
the hearing on October 9, 2019 and he requested the board approve the order. 

 
MOTION by Member Campbell, seconded by Member Kalaghchy, and vote 
unanimous to approve the Final Order for the Coastal Construction Control 
Line Variance for 718 Wave Crest Avenue. Motion carried 4-0. 

 
4. Adjournment 

 
There being no further discussion, the meeting was adjourned at 6:20 p.m. 

 
 
 
 
 
      ____________________________  

 Chair/Vice Chair 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________  
Rebekah Raddon, CMC, Town Clerk           
 



Board of Adjustment Page 1 of2 
TOWN OF INDIALANTIC 

Brevard County, Florida 32903 
APPLICATION FOR ZONING VARIANCE 1 

Application is hereby made for a variance in accordance with Section 17-142 of the Indialantic Code of Ordinances. 

PLEASE PRINT OR TYPE 

1. Applicant states that the property is located at: 

Lot(s): 7 
Block: 66 

Street Address_ 405 N. Miramar Ave, Indialantic, FL 32903 _ _ ____ ______ _ 

2. Applicant's name, address and phone number: 

Name:_ Bennett Engineering & Consulting, LLC, Clayton Bennett, PE _ -Phone: _321-622-4462 __ 

Address : _ 4940 Ranchland Road, Melbourne, FL 32934 _ ____ _______ _ _ _ 

3. Property is owned by: _ 405 Miramar, LLC ___ _______ _____ _ 

who resides at: _150 Lansing Island Drive, Indian Harbour Beach, FL 32903 _________ _ 

4. The relationship of the applicant to the property is: 

OWNER: ATTORNEY: AGENT: x -------- -------- -----

5. The property is zoned as: _T ___ _____ ________ ____ __ _ 

6. The requested variance(s) is for the following non-conformities of the Indialantic Code: 

Code Section Explain Non-conformity . 
a. 6-30(c) A variance of276.2 ft is requested to construct seaward of the coastal 

construction control line. 
b. 17-127(4)(B) 
c. 

A variance of25 ft to the required 100 (t lot width 

d. 

7. Site plans are the same as submitted to the Zoning Board? 

YES __ NO _ X __ Date: _ [Site Plan to be submitted to Zoning Board after BOA meeting] 

8. Should this variance not be granted, a hardship will be imposed and/or the applicant will be injured in the 
following respects: 

• The majority of the site is located seaward of the coastal construction control line. Reasonable 
use of the lot would be prevented without a variance to Section 6-30. 

• The subject lot was platted in or around 1916 prior to the establishment of the Town Zoning 
Regulations. 



Board of Adjustment Page 2 of2 

SECTION 17-142. APPLICATION 
Any person desiring a variance shall file a written application with the Town Clerk who shall provide a 

true copy of the published legal notice concerning said application to interested parties pursuant to section 
17-143. Each application for variance shall specify the section and subsection of the chapter of the 
Indialantic Code of Ordina11ces involved, shall set forth the exact variance desired with respect thereto, 
shall furnish a site plan (12 copies) on which the variance is to occur, shall explicitly define the details of 
the variance involved, and shall state the basis on which the variance is requested. 

SECTION 17-143. NOTICE OF HEARING 
(1) Upon receipt of the application for a variance, the Town Clerk shall cause a notice of the 

application and the time and place of the hearing thereon to be published, at least fifteen (15) days and not 
more than thirty (30) days prior to such hearing, in a newspaper of general circulation in the town; and 
shall post a copy in the Town Hall. The Town Clerk shall mail a copy of such notice to those persons 
owning property within the radius of two hundred (200) feet of the property affected by the application. 

(2) The notice shall state that protests may be filed with the Town Clerk within a specified time, and 
shall state that any person owning or residing upon or occupying property within the radius of two hundred 
(200) feet of the property affected by the application shall have the right to protest the variance requested. 

A fee of $400.00 is required at the time the application is filed. 

I hereby agree to the payment of the fee as prescribed by the Indialantic Code of Ordinances. I hereby 
depose and say that all the above staj:ements are true a correct to the best of my knowledge. 

Signature of applicant . W ~ £../ Date {;,.,;/?/co 
~I 

Sworn to before me this ___ 1_7~~ day of _ )_-u_()_e ___ ~----' 20 JO 

NOTARY iXlilj ~ Commission expires ~3~/_J 1,_/_ZO_Z~l/ _ _ 

K REILY SWITZER 
Notary Public, State of Florida 

Commission# GG 968249 
My comm. expires March 11, 2024 

FOR OFFICE USE ONLY 
Application checked and accepted by: Date 

-------~-------- - - ----

ACTION BY BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT: 

Approved ------- Disapproved ------- Date 

Board of Adjustment Chairman Board of Adjustment Secretary 





 
 
 
 

COASTAL CONSTRUCTION CONTROL LINE 
VARIANCE REQUEST REPORT 

 
 

TO THE 

 

TOWN OF INDIALANTIC 
 
 

FOR 

405 MOTEL SITE 
405 Miramar Ave 

Indialantic, FLORIDA 
 
 

OWNER 

405 Miramar, LLC 
150 Lansing Island Drive 

Indian Harbour Beach, FL 32937 
 
  
 

 
 

PREPARED BY 
Bennett Engineering & Consulting, LLC. 

Clayton A. Bennett, P.E.   
Fla. No. 53129 

4940 Ranchland Road 
Melbourne, FL 32934 

CA #28236 
 

BEC No. 19.280 
 

June 17, 2020 



405 Motel Site  Bennett Engineering & Consulting, LLC. 
405 N. Miramar Ave, Indialantic  BEC No. 19.280 
June 17, 2020  Page 1 of 2 

I PROJECT OVERVIEW 
 
The proposed improvements for the referenced project include the construction of a multi-family 
development, paved driveways, utilities, and stormwater management system along with other 
associated improvements on a site located at 405 N. Miramar Ave in the Town of Indialantic, 
Brevard County, Florida. 
 
Earlier in 2020, the site improvements associated with the prior motel development were 
demolished, leaving the site essentially vacant except for the existing seawall.   
 
Since the proposed structures are located seaward of the 1986 Coastal Construction Control 
Line (CCCL), the proposed structures will be required to be designed in accordance with 
Section 3109 Florida Building Code (FBC) which includes a pile foundation designed to resist 
the predicted forces of a 100-year storm event.  All construction shall be designed to meet or 
exceed current design standards for coastal structures.   
 
The Town of Indialantic requires a variance for all non-exempt major construction seaward of 
the Brevard County Coastal Construction Control Line (Section 6-30 (c) Town Code).  The 
owner of the property has applied for a variance in accordance with the Town variance 
procedures.  The purpose of this report is to provide reasonable assurance that the 
development will not jeopardize the stability of the beach dune system, will not accelerate 
erosion, and will not endanger either adjacent or landward property or the property in question 
itself. 
 
II VARIANCE JUSTIFICATION 
 
Section 6-30 (c) (2) (a) of the Town Code states that the Board of Adjustment shall grant a 
variance only when the applicant has met his burden of proof by providing that construction of 
the major structures seaward of the Coastal Construction Control Line will not jeopardize the 
stability of the beach dune system, will not accelerate erosion, and will not endanger either 
adjacent or landward property or the property in question itself;  it being in the public interest 
and prudent to preserve and protect the beaches of the Town of Indialantic from harm.  The 
following will outline how this development meets the above criteria. 
 
The development will not jeopardize the stability of the Beach Dune System. 
 

The proposed improvements are located landward of the estimated 30-year erosion line as 
predicted utilizing an erosion loss of 1 foot per year for 30-years (i.e. a loss of 30 feet).   
 
No excavation is proposed on the seaward side of the existing seawall.  The existing 
seawall will serve as a barrier between the proposed improvements and the beach dune 
system.       

 
The project will not accelerate erosion. 

 
No land clearing or excavation is proposed seaward of the existing seawall.  In addition, 
the proposed improvements are located within previously disturbed areas void of any 
significant vegetation.  



405 Motel Site  Bennett Engineering & Consulting, LLC. 
405 N. Miramar Ave, Indialantic  BEC No. 19.280 
June 17, 2020  Page 2 of 2 

The project will not endanger either adjacent or landward property or the property in 
question itself. 
 

The following steps have been taken to protect the proposed improvements and the 
adjoining properties: 

 
1. The proposed improvements are located on the landward side of an existing 

concrete seawall.  The said concrete seawall will serve as a barrier between the 
proposed construction and the beach dune system.   

 
2. The proposed structure will be required to meet current coastal construction 

standards which includes a pile foundation designed to resist the 100-year storm 
event.  The said coastal construction design standards require the structure to be 
securely anchored into the ground and provide reasonable assurance that the 
structure would not be broken apart or driven into adjacent or landward structures.  
For the ground level walls, where breakaway walls are proposed, the said walls shall 
be design per the Florida Building Code to breakaway in relatively small sections to 
avoid and/or reduce the risk of damage to the building itself or adjacent structures.  

 
3. The proposed improvements will be subjected to the scrutiny of the State (Florida 

Department of Environmental Protection) during the Coastal Construction Permit 
application review process, thus providing reasonable assurance that the proposed 
development will comply with State Coastal and Environmental standards. 

 
In considering the subject site along with the proposed design approach, reasonable 
steps have been taken to protect adjacent, landward and onsite structures.  Therefore, it 
is in my professional opinion that the development of the site will not endanger adjacent 
or landward property or the property in question. 

 
III CONCLUSION 
 
Based on the above information, the applicant requests that the Board of Adjustment grant a 
favorable decision to the variance request to Construct Seaward of the Coastal Construction 
Control Line. 
 
IV CERTIFICATION 
 
The Coastal Construction Control Line Variance Request Report for the proposed multi-family 
development located at 405 N. Miramar Ave, Indialantic was prepared by me or under my direct 
supervision. 
 

______________________________ 
Clayton A. Bennett, PE 
FLA P.E. No.  53129 

 
 
       ______________________________ 

Date 

cbenn
PE Seal - Clayton Bennett

cbenn
This Item has been





cbenn
PE Seal - Clayton Bennett

cbenn
This Item has been



⅊

℄


	11-13-19 BOA Minutes.pdf
	MINUTES
	Town of Indialantic Board of Adjustment
	Town Hall Council Chamber
	216 Fifth Avenue, Indialantic, FL 32903
	November 13, 2019 at 5:30 P.M.

	Coastal Report-ss (1).pdf
	CCCL Variance  Request Report Cover Rev01
	TOWN OF INDIALANTIC
	405 MOTEL SITE
	405 Miramar Ave
	OWNER
	150 Lansing Island Drive
	Indian Harbour Beach, FL 32937


	BEC No. 19.280
	June 17, 2020

	CCCL Variance  Request Report Rev01
	II VARIANCE JUSTIFICATION





